From: Penny Thompson

To: Corey Saucier; Courtney Boma; Joan Theriault; Jennifer Kelley
Cc: Janine Murchison; Philip J McDonough III

Subject: RE: Meeting wrap-up

Date: Sunday, February 16, 2025 5:21:32 PM

Attachments: Answers to Questions.pdf

Good evening —

| wanted to let the committee know that | have answered Councilor Bagley’s questions (attached)
the best | could.

Penny Thompson

City Manager

City of Caribou Maine

(207) 493 — 5961 (direct line)
pthompson@cariboumaine.org

From: Corey Saucier <Corey.saucier@cariboumaine.org>

Sent: Friday, February 14, 2025 8:15 PM

To: Penny Thompson <pthompson@-cariboumaine.org>; Courtney Boma
<cboma@cariboumaine.org>; Joan Theriault <joan.theriault@cariboumaine.org>; Jennifer Kelley
<jkelley@cariboumaine.org>

Cc: Janine Murchison <Janine.Murchison@sewall.com>; Philip J McDonough IlI
<Philip.J.McDonough@cariboumaine.org>

Subject: Re: Meeting wrap-up

Sounds good, Penny. | will reach out to LensLock regarding interior recording systems
Wednesday.

Dispensers should be a easy decision. Nothing fancy, just functional.

Hopefully, we will soon have a code enforcement officer for our city, and we would be able to
direct our questions to that person.

| realize you wear and have worn lots of hats throughout your work career. Because of that
people believe you have all the answers, and we truly look to you for answers because of your
knowledge and experience.

| know your guidance and assistance has been invaluable for myself and my new role.

Corey

Sent from my U.S.Cellular© Smartphone
Get Outlook for Android

From: Penny Thompson <pthompson@cariboumaine.org>
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¢ Increased length and width of footprint from Schematic Design, plus expanded vestibule
space.

That is true. Looking at the 11.20.2024 floor plan that was approved for schematic design, the
footprint is 79°6” x 125’°6” and the vestibule is 15’ x 20’. The progress set from 02.07.2025 showed a
footprint of 83’4”x 128’ and the vestibule is 8’8” x 32’. From the 01.30.2025 email, “the square footage
appears larger because we are taking dimensions from the exterior brick facade as opposed to the
structural framing we previously dimensioned from. We will adjust so all square footage comes in
line — after our meeting. This is a plan tied to a 3-D model so the drawings are further along than they
appear.”

e Also added mezzanine, added back in basement area, and specified initial choices on
some materials and finishings.

As far as | know, there was always a mezzanine level for mechanical items. On the 11.20.2024 plan,
you can see in the patrol room 159, you can see where it says “Line of Mezzanine Above” near the
outside wall. Previously there was a pull-down stairs in one of the rooms. In the 11.20.2024 plan, it
was in patrol storage room 119. The set of stairs currently shown adjacent to the patrol area will be a
much safer option for access and future maintenance. The basement was always in the plan. There
was not always a plan sheet for that but if you look at renderings, there is always a door in the
basement. Basement area is for electrical, plumbing, and fire prevention.

e Contractor asserts that the cost estimate has not changed since approved Schematic
Design, but that claim has not been supported with any data. We need to insist that Artifex
do the work they’re contracted to do and provide us an updated Project Cost Estimate for
this design, as required. This is a critical element of the Design Development package.

In email dated October 30, 2024, Artifex stated, when asked for an updated full estimate “we have
done 2 full estimates so far — our total project budget includes 3 - they cost us $6000 Each so our
additional amount cannot cover an extra full estimate of probable costs.” And “Everything but the
cost estimate - if you want to add that fee, we would wait until mechanical, electrical, plumbing and
structural had also been updated —this would be about 4 weeks.” The email dated 02.05.2025 stated
that “the cost estimate will take 3-4 weeks. That is after we are due to be completed.” The 11.18.2024
project budget summary gave a probable construction cost of $788 / square foot. That included a
10% contingency and there is an additional 5% design contingency added for a total of 15%.

e Do we really want a wall of glass in fitness area (privacy, energy efficiency)?

This was discussed at length in committee. The wall of glass will bring light into the patrol room.
Privacy may not be an issue as the building is at a higher elevation than Fort Street.

¢ Whatis the purpose of the 4 undesignated offices? I’ve heard only that we plan on renting
out the space, but I’ve seen no plan that addresses that concept - this is not sufficient
justification for spending the money to build. Who will use and how will access be
controlled? Do we really want external agencies wandering around in the admin area? How
will IT’Comms be provided separate from police department staff?





These would be the allied offices that could be rented. The Chief is working on numbers for this. | do
not have all the answers. The committee did discuss moving the door shown at 123B so that the
restroom would be in the allied area, but someone could not get into the sworn area without proper
credentials (key card). This also provides an area for expansion. Example, some departments might
have code enforcement working from their offices. Or if there would be a detective or other specialty.

e Why is there still a Lieutenant office? The need for a Lieutenant or Deputy position has not
been established, so why would we spend the money to include this?

There is still an administrative assistant in the budget. The office could be used for that employee.
There is currently an office in the current police station for that position as well.

o Added a Sergeant office. What is the justification for this? Is this meant to be a shared
space for all of them, like maybe for the on-duty sergeant, or a dedicated office for just one
of them? Who will that be?

There is currently an office in the current police station that is designated for a Sergeant office. As far
as | know, all of the Sergeants use the office for their lockers and they share a work space. My guess
is that they work there during their shifts if not on the road or on the desk.

e Added a mezzanine level, apparently to accommodate mechanical. Removed previous
mechanical room, seemed to have added back in a basement area. What is the purpose of
the basement area if mechanical is on mezzanine? Will mechanical equipment be open
and visible from the ground floor, or will there be walls on each side to enclose the
mezzanine space and isolate the space visually and acoustically?

As stated above, the basement is for electrical, plumbing, and fire prevention. The mezzanine would
be for HVAC. There has been some discussion about what is enclosed and what is open in the
mezzanine, but we believe it will be enclosed. Everything seemed logical that the design team
discussed. | do not have a lot of notes from that discussion. We are allowing them to do their job as
they are the experts.

e Canteen and officer work areas still way too big for what we need, and the chief’s
conference room is not really needed and probably won’t be used much. Should consider
reducing size of both and using the freed up space for a training room instead, which | think
would be more beneficial operationally, and get a lot more use.

The canteen from the 02.07.2025 progress setis 14’87 x 28’10” ... we have seen photos from a similar
setup in Wicomico County Maryland. There is a wall with cabinets, a refrigerator, sink, housing for
two microwaves, many outlets for coffee pots, crock pots, air fryers or instant pots. There is no oven
or cooktop. Thereis a dishwasher in the lower cabinetry. There is an island with two different heights.
The higher height has bar height chairs. Lower height would have storage under and plenty of outlets.

The officer work area is shown on the 02.07.2025 progress set as 25’ 8” x 28’ 10”. There are several
doorsto other adjacent spaces. One of the first steps in the process (2021) was to look at adjacencies
which would inform the layout of the station.

In the existing police station, there is aroom that has a handwashing sink, is the current locker room,
the break room, the meeting space and the hallway to the toilet room, mechanical room, and allied





office. This was identified as a functional deficiency in the current station. Even though | am not a
part of that department, | have attended several meetings / gatherings in that space. As the
department gains adequate staff to embrace a strategy of being more present with the community, it
isimportant to have a space thatthe community can be welcomed into the station. That was the idea
of a designated, larger training space. Community groups could have their meetings there and feel
more connected to the department.

Itis true that the training room was eliminated when we went from the design with a full basement to
the current one-story design. The conference room, accessible from the interlock and the Chief’s
office, is 26’ 8” x 16’4”. This area can still function as a training space and can be a meeting space
outside of the secure, sworn area

e Added backin laundry. Didn’t we say we didn’t need that?

It was in the schematic design. If the City decides not to put in a washer and dryer, it can be used for
storage.

¢ Added backin armory. Didn’t we say we didn’t need that?
It was in the schematic design. It would be best practice to keep the armory.

e FEvidence intake and detainee processing go through the same shared area. Is this workable
operationally and can this arrangement be certified for evidence handling? How do you
ensure chain of custody if intake is done in an “open” area? What if the evidence is
weapons or something you wouldn’t want to bring into an open area that detainees have
access to?

Any detainee would be under control of an officer. | don’t believe they would be bringing in evidence
with a detainee. There are cameras designed to be in multiple spots in the sally port, processing and
holding to ensure chain of custody. | do not believe that they would have designed it this way if there
was an issue. There will be pistol lockers so that the officer would not have a weapon on them while
transporting a detainee. We are allowing them to do their job as they are the experts.

e Do we really need/want windows in Sallyport Storage and K9 area?

This was likely a design choice to provide more curb appeal. But | do not know. | don’t remember it
being discussed.

¢ One locker area now designated “future” and does not appear to be built out with any
facilities. What is the planned use for this space in the interim?

As far as | know, there is still a requirement for a space for a lactation room. This would be an ideal
area for that. | have not yet discussed this with the design team.

o Converted previous “Room” to a “Utility” room — what is the purpose and/or intended use?

Utility. | have not asked but this might have been inresponse to a note | made on an earlier plan asking
if there should be ajanitorroomin that area of the building. My thinking is that the janitor closet (room
109) is adjacent to the office area where it would, in theory, be cleaner. So if there was space to have
ajanitorial area nearer the areas with the cells, shower area, staff circulation, it might be a good idea.





There was also a mention of installing hot water heater(s) in that room as close to the showers, but
all of that is still being discussed.

¢ Which of the walls/windows/doors, if any, are specified as “ballistic?” Hard to tell from the
drawings. | suspect this will be a significant cost-driver, and although beneficial for safety,
it’s really not required except if you’re going to use the building as an emergency response
center, which we currently have no plans to do — we already have a facility for that.

This has been discussed during the past two meetings. There will be a lot of concrete walls as part of
the construction. The idea is to cut down on the types of wall construction. Additionally, these would
be finished as ground face masonry which Chief Gahagan and | saw in many of the stations we
visited. Lower maintenance costs. There will be ballistic glass ONLY in the areas necessary.

e There's a clear line of sight from locker room entry doors to shower area. There should be
an additional door to the shower/toilet areas to provide privacy and block the view from the
entry doors to lockers. Perhaps pocket doors would serve that purpose best.

I think a pocket door makes sense here. | do not remember there being any discussion, but it can be
brought up.






Sent: Friday, February 14, 2025 7:04:12 PM

To: Courtney Boma <cboma@cariboumaine.org>; Joan Theriault
<joan.theriault@cariboumaine.org>; Jennifer Kelley <jkelley@cariboumaine.org>

Cc: Janine Murchison <Janine.Murchison@sewall.com>; Corey Saucier
<Corey.saucier@cariboumaine.org>; Philip J McDonough llI

<Philip.).McDonough@cariboumaine.org>
Subject: Meeting wrap-up

Good evening members of the Caribou City Council Public Safety Building Committee —

First, | apologize that | was out of sorts for the meeting. It has been a day with several things going
sideways this afternoon.

Second, although it has been on my “list” for a month, | put “Call Versant about PD” on my actual
calendar and blocked off time to call them on Tuesday.

Corey, for next time, could you please reach out to Lenslock to see if they have a system for building
interior spaces?

| can reach out to Shawn Parker from P&E about specifications on the dispensers. Then | can send to
you (Chief) and you can determine which hardware that you would want installed. Then we can send
to Artifex.

Councilors: Please let me know about timings for a meeting with COPPS.

Now for the soapbox — | am NOT pleased that Artifex / MW is even considering a design without
sprinklers. We have repeated that this building costs more because it needs to be operational if there
was a disaster. Therefore, it is important that it be properly designed for risk category 4. | don’t think
this passes the straight face test if we are classifying it as an office building (Business occupancy) at
a cost of $10,000,000. In addition to the office, even though it would hold less than 5 detainees,
practically, it would still have an Institutional occupancy, and a Storage occupancy. A fire is more
likely to start in an attached garage (and this building has that) and those in the holding cells are
directly adjacent to that. It should be designed for the occupancy with the most stringent
requirements. Full disclosure: | am NOT a walking code book and the 2021 codes are being adopted
in April and | have had no updated training on what has changed (and likely will not have training). Not
in favor. Not a fan of even bringing it up.

Penny Thompson

City Manager

City of Caribou Maine

(207) 493 — 5961 (direct line)

pthompson@cariboumaine.org
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